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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Broil Solar Energy Private Limited, 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Broil Solar Energy Private Limited. c·1he 
Company'") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2023 and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss for the year ended. including the statement or Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the Ind A 
financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
informat ion. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information requi red by the Companies Act. 
20 I 3 ("the Acf") in the manner so required and give a true and fai r view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31s1 2023. its loss including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs). as speci fied under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial 
Statements' section of our report. We arc independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of 
Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the eth ical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance wi th these 
requirements and the Code or Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment. were or most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole. and in fo rming our opinion 
thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 70 I is not applicable to the company as 
company. 

Information Other than the Fimmcial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The ot ~=fl"l n : 
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the fnd tmancial ' 
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statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other informat ion and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibili ty is to read the other 
information and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materia lly 
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. \Ve have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) o f the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Acf') with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial statements that 
give a true and fa ir view of the financial position, fi nancial performance and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles general ly accepted in India, including the accounting 
standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance o f adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; makingjudgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementat ion and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effecti vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
o f the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fa ir vie-.v and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realist ic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wi ll always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i1~ individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an aud it in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financia l statements. 
whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsiv !~)hose risks. 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fb( fW5,9pinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting fro. 111 fraud is hig G/\<tli'an31fo~ oryb 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentio ~~i ns. 
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misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we arc 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures 
are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However. future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure. and content of the Ind AS financial statements. 
including the disclosures. and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fai r presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions or a reasonably knowledgeable user or the 
linancial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged wi th governance regarding. among other matters. the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deliciencies in 
internal control that we idcntil)1 during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance 'vvith a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related 
safeguards. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ("the Order .. ). issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 11 ) or Section 143 of the Companies Act. 201 3. we 
enclose in the Annexure - Ba statement on the mauers spcci fied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said 
Order. 

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act. we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit: 

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the C 
far as appears from our examination of those books: 



(c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account: 

(d) In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply wi th the Accounting 
Standards speci fied under Section I 33 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 20 IS, as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1. 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
3 1. 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section I 64 (2) of the Act; 

(0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in .. Annexure A., to this report: 

(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company. managerial remuneration has not been paid / provided. 
Accordingly. reporting under section 197( 16) of the Act is not appl icable: and 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors· Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best o r 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

t The Company has disclosed pending litigations and the impact on its financial position -
refer note 36 to the Standalone Financial Statements 

it The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material fo reseeable losses. 

ut There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

rv. The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief. other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, 

1. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of runds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign enti ties 'Intermediari es'. with the 
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall. 
whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and 

11. No funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies). 
including foreign entities 'Funding Parties'. with the understanding. whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise. that the company shall. ,Yhether. directly or 
indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 'U ltimate Beneficiaries' or pl'ovidc 
any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. <ocD & 0 
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111. Based on audit procedures carried out by us. that we have considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any materi al 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly 
reporting on the compliance with section I 23 or the Companies Act.20 13 is not applicable 
for the year under consideration. 

\ ,1. As proviso to Rule 3( I ) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 (as amended). which 
provides for books or account to have the feature o r audit trail. edit log and related matters 
in the accounting software used by the Company. is applicable to the Company only with 
effect from financial year beginning April I. 2023. the reporting under clause (g) of Ruic 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 20 14 (as amended). is currently not 
applicable. 

For ABCD & Co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 16415S 

Vinay Kumar Bachhawat- Partner 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 23rd May 2023. 
UDIN: 232 14520BGWSZK7359 
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ' Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section of our 
report to the members of Broil Solar Energy Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Com panics Act, 20 J 3 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Broil Solar Energy Private 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 3 1. 2023. in conjunction ,,vi th our audit or the Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Interna l Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting cri teria estab lished by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. 
including adherence to the Company's pol icies. the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely 
preparation of re liable financial information. as required under the Companies Act. 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
r~porling with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on AudiL of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143( I 0) of the 
Companies Act. 2013. to the extent appl icable to an audit o f internal financial controls and. both issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accounlants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in a ll 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtain ing an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting wi th reference to these 
Ind /\S financial statements. assessing the ri sk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed ri sk. The procedures 
selecled depend on the auditor's judgemenl. including the assessment or the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial rcponing ·with reference tot 
AS financial statements. 

--- ---



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these 
Financial Statements 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabi lity of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial cont rol over financial reporti ng with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements includes those policies and procedures that 

( I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit preparation or 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authori zations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. 
use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to 
these Ind AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with rele rencc 
to these Ind AS financial statements. including the possibility or collusion or improper management 
override or controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. 
projections of any evaluation of the internal fi nancial controls over financial reporting with reference to 
these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedmcs may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has. in al I material respects. adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting ,vith reference to these 1ml /\S financial statements and such internal financial 
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating 
effectively as at March 3 1. 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establ ished 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over l'inancial Reporting issued by the Institute or Chartered 
Accountants of India 

For ABCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 l64 l5S 

V~Bachhaw, 
Membership No: 214520 __ _ 
Place: Cherrnai. 
Date: 23rd May 2023. 
UDIN: 232 14520BGWSZK7359 



'·Anncxurc "B" to the Independent Auditor's Report 
(Referred to in paragraph I under ·Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section of our 
report to the members of Broil Solar Energy Private Limited of even date) 

I. Fixed Assets: 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the 
Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation or property. plant and equip1nent and intangible assets. 

b) The property. plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the 
1nanagement during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us 
and as examined by us. no material discrepancies were noticed on such veri fication. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by 
us, we report that the Company does not hold any freehold and leasehold immovable 
properties of land and building as at the balance sheet date. 

cl) The Company has not revalued its properly, plant. and equipment during the year. 

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. there arc 
no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Bena mi Transactions (Prohibition) /\et. 1988 ( 45 of 1988) and rules 
made thereunder. 

2. Inventories: 

., 

.) . 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. and on the 
basis of our examination of the books or account. the Company does not have any inventory 
as on 3151 March 2023. 

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capi tal limits in excess of five crore rupees. 
in aggregate. from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets 
at any point of time during the year. 

a) ln our opinion and according lo information and explanation given to us. the Company has 
made loans in the nature of unsecured loans to subsidiary company. 

b) The aggregate amount of transaction during the year and balance outstanding at the balance 
sheet date with respect to loan to subsidiary company is Rs. 1.423 (in ·oOOs) and Rs. 1.426 
(in '000s) respect ively. 

c) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the investments 
made. guarantees provided, security gi vcn and the terms and conditions of the grant of all 
loans and advances in 1he nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the 
company's interest. 

cl) The terms of arrangement do 1101 stipulate any repayment schedule and the 
repayable on demand with interest. 

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the co 
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granted the loans or advances in the nature or loans either repayable on demand or wi thout 
specifying any terms or period of repayment aggregating to Rs. 1,426 (in ·OOOs) ( I 00% to 
the total loans and advances in the nature of loans granted during the year). The aggregate 
or loans granted to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies 
Act.20 13 is Rs. 1.426 (in ·OOOs) 

f) Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans an.: 
repayable on demand, no question of overdue amounts wi ll arise in respect of the loans 
granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section I 89 of the Act. 

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the Company has 
not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security to ,vhich the 
provisions or section 185 of the Act arc applicable. 

b) In respect or investments made by the Company and loans given to parties other than those 
covered in Section 185 of the Act. the Company had complied ,vith the provisions of section 
186 of the Act. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions 
of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 201 5 regarding to the deposi ts 
accepted from the public are not applicable. 

6. The 1naintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub -
section ( I) of section 148 of the Act. in respect of the activities carried on by the company. 
l lowever. the overall turnover from all its products and services is less than 35 crores in the 
preceding financial year. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) is not applicable to the company. 

7. In respect of statutory dues: 

a) According to informal ion and explanations given to us and on lhc basis of our cxaminalion 
of the books of account , and records. lhe Company has general ly been regular in depositing 
undisputed slatutory dues including Provident r:und, Employees Slalc Insurance. lncomc­
Tax. Sales tax, Service Tax. Duty of Cusloms. Duly of Excise. Value added Tax. Good 
and Service tax (GST). Cess and any olher statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. 
There were no undispuled amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 
March 3 1. 2023 for a period o r more lhan six months from the date on when lhey become 
payable. 

b) According to the informalion and explanations given lo me. there arc no dues of income 
tax. sales lax, service lax. duty of cusloms. duty of excise. value added tax, Good and 
Service tax (GST) outstanding on account of any dispute. 

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessmenls under the Income Tax Act, I 961 (43 of 1961 ). 

9. 

a) In our opinion and according to the in fo rmation and explanations given to us, the 
has nol defaulted in repayment of loans to banks or in the paymenl of interest 
any lender during the year. The lnter Corporate Borrowings arc repayable on de '"'°'·11. ...... .......-
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terms and conditions for payment of interest thereon have not been stipulated. According 
to the information and explanations given to us, such loans and interest thereon have not 
been demanded for repayment during the relevant linancial year. 

b) In our opinion and according to the in fo rmation and explanations given to us. the Company 
is not declared as a willfu l defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

c) In our opinion and according to the in fo rmation and explanations given to us. the term 
loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for which they were availed. 

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. funds raised 
on sho11 term basis have not been utilized for long-term purposes. 

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the company 
has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. 
joint ventures. or associate companies. 

f) Upon examination of the linancial statements of the company. the company has not taken 
any funds from any entity or person on account to meet the obligation of its subsidiaries. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or fu rther public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly. clause(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or converti ble 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly. 
paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the in formation and explanations given to 
us. no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been 
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, clause(xi)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

b) No report under subsection ( 12) of section 143 of the companies act has been filed in fo rm 
AOT-4 as prescribed under the rule 13 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.20 1-l 
with the central government. during the year and up to the date of this report. 

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no whistle-blower complaints, have been received by the Company during the year. 

12. The Company is not a Niclhi Company. Therefore. the provisions of clause(xii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. all transactions with 
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act. 201 3 and the 
details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind A Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

14. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Co 
docs not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit 
as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

-



b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit. 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management. the company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
co1rnected with him. Accordingly. the provisions of section 192 and clause(xv) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

16. 

• In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 and accordingly. the provisions of clause(xvi) of(a). 
(b)and (c) the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

• In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it docs not have any other companies in the 
Group. Accordingly. paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not npplicable. 

17. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 1.20 I (In ·000.\) in the current financial year and 
incurred cash losses of Rs.1,4 73 (In ·ooOs) Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 

18. There has been no resignat ion of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clausc(xviii ) 
of the Order is not appl icable. 

I 9. In our opinion and accord ing to the in formation and explanations given to us and on the basis or the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of real isation of fi nancial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of the board o r 
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the elate of balance sheet as and 
when they fa ll due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We. however. state that 
this is not an assurance as lo the future viability of the company. We further slate that our reporting 
is based on facts up to the date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabil ities fa lling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the company as and when they fa ll due. 

20. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. section 135 of the 
Companies act is not app licable to the company. Accordingly, repo11ing under clause3(xx)(a) and 
(b) of' the order is not applicable for the year. 

21. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of the audit or 
Standalone financial Statements. Accordingly. no comment in respect of the said clause has been 
included in this repo11. 

For ABCD & Co, 
Chartered Accountant 
Firm · 

em ership No: _ :, 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 23rd May 2023. 
UDIN: 232 I 4520BGWSZK7359 



BROIL SOLAR ENF:RGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U74999TN2017PTCll6769 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023 

AS ETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property. P lant and Eq uipment 
Capiwl Work In P rogrc.:ss 
I ntangiblc A,sets 
Fin:111cial /\sso.:ts 

I nvc.:stmc nts 
l .oans 
Other Financial assets 

Otho.:r Nun -C urrent A,sets 
Total No11-C11rre11t As.\·ets 

CURRENT ASSETS 
r-inancial /\sso.:ts 

Trad e Rc.:cc.:ivablcs 
Cash a nd Cash EquivalenL.; 
Other Financial assets 

Other C urrc.:nt Assets 
Total Current asset.-. 
Total Assets 

EQUITY AN D LIABILITI ES 
EQU ITY 
Equi ty Share Capital 
Otho.:r Equity 
To tal Equ it) ' 

LIABILITIES 
o n-Current Liabilities 

Financ ial I . ia bilities 
13orro wings 

O.:fern:d Tax Liabiliti<:s (Net) 
Total N on-Current Liabilities 

C urre n t Liabilities 
F inancial Liabilitic.:s 

Borrowing..; 
Trade Payables Duo.: to 

Micro and Small Enterprises 
Othc.:r than Micro and Small Enterprisc.:s 

Otho.:r Financial Liabilities 
P rovis ions 
Other Currc.:nt Liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
To tal Equity a nd Liabilities 

See accompanying notes to the f-inancial t:nements: 1-41 
As per our report of even date 

'otes 

4 
5 
6 

7 
8 
<) 

10 

I I 

12 
13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
30 

18 
19 

20 
2 1 
22 

As at 
3 1-Ma r-23 

2 15.857 
63.226 

122 

1.000 
1.426 

23.712 
3 1.550 

336.894 

2.904 
2. 149 

563 
5,616 

342,5 10 

. 27.207 
( 13.765) 

13,-442 

284.881 
3 1.128 

3 16.(JOH 

I I .404 

41X 
43 

253 
692 
249 

13.1)5') 
32'),068 
3 -42.5 10 

(Rs. In '000) 
As at 

3 I-Mar-22 

I 0(,.207 
9 1.92 1 

222 

-t.000 
100 

2 1.689 
-12.61 3 

266. 752 

21) 

527 
1.434 

756 
2.746 

269,498 

27.207 
22.34-t 
-49,550 

192.050 
19.469 

2 11.518 

'.!70 
10-t 

7.452 
89 

515 
H.430 

2/'J.948 
269 .498 

For ABCD & Co. .--~ For Broil Solar Energy Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 016415S 

Vina K 11ar Bachhawat - Panne..__ _ _ _ _ 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennni, 
Date: 23.05.2023 

Kalpesh Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 07966090 
Place: Chennai 

unny Chandrakumar Jai 
Director 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Chcnnai 



BROIL SOLAR ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
C I N: U74999TN2017PTCI16769 
Statement of Profit a nd Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 

INCOME 
Reve nue From O perations 

Other Income 
Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Cost of Materials Consumed 

Employee Benefit Expenses 

Fina nce Costs 

Depreciation / Amortisation Expenses 

O the r Expenses 
Total expenses 

Profit / (Loss) Before tax 
Less : Tax Expenses 

Current Tax 

Defe rred T ax 
Pro fi t for the Period 
Othe r Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclass ified to Profit o r Loss 

Re measurements of de fined bene fit obligations. ne t 
Total Compre hens ive Income for the year 

Earnings per equity sha re (Face value or Rs. I 0 each) 

Basic ( in Rs) 

Dilutive ( in Rs) 

Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings 

per equity share 

Bas ic 

Dilutive 

Sec accompanying notes to the Financial Statements: 1--t I 
As per our report of even date 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1 

(Rs. In "000) 

For the Year e nde d For the Year ended 
31-Mar-23 3 1-Mar-22 

20.562 

1,337 

2 1,899 

2.1 6 1 

11.1 73 

23.247 

9,767 

46,349 

(24.450) 

11.659 

(36. 108) 

(36, I 08) 

( 13.27) 

( 13.27) 

27.20.672 

57,16.800 

10.83 1 

743 

11,57-t 

4 
6.646 

13.921 

6.397 

26.969 

( 15.396) 

19.885 

(35.280) 

(35.280) 

( 12.97) 

( 12.97) 

27.20.672 

41,73,589 

For ABCD & Co. For Broil Solar Energy Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 16415S 

Yinay · 1111ar Bachhawat - Partnet. 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai. 
Dme: 23.05.2023 

Kalpesh Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 07966090 
Place: Chennai 

/)1& : 
Su~1~andrakumar Jai~ 
Director · 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Chennai 



BROIL SOLAR ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U7-'999TN2017PTC116769 
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Partic ulars 

A. Ca,; h flow from o pcr.lling activities 
N..:t P rofit/ (Loss) lx:for..: tax 
Adj 11.1·1111ents for: 

D e preciation 
Interest incom..: 
I ntc rcst expe nse 
Loss on Sa le of lnvcstmc nL 

Opc niting loss before working capital c.:lmnges 
AdjlL<;tments for (increase)/ decrease in operating ass..:ts : 
Adjustme nts for increase/ tdccreas..:) in operating l~-i bilitics: 
Trade Rece ivables 
O ther Fiminc ial /\ss..:ts 
Othc r C urre nt Assets 
Track Payabks 
Otha Financial Liabilities 
l'rovi, ion 
O th..:r C urrent Liabilities 
C a sh used in operations 

Ne t cas h flow from / (used) in 0 11e r.1ting activ ities 

B . C ,L<; h flo w from investing activitie s 

I nves1mc nt in tang ible a nd int::tngibk: ass..:ts 
l11v..:s 1m..:11t in s ubsidiuri..:s 
lnvestmcnt in Fixed Deposit 
I .oan g iven I ll rcL-11ed parties 
( lncn.:ase) / dcc r..:as..: in Capital /\dvanc..:s 
I nt..:r..:st r..:ceived 

et cash flow from / (used) inves ting activities 

C. C m.la flow fn1m financing ac tivities 
Procc..:ds fro m / ( Repayme nts to) Non C urrcnt Borrowing..,; 
lnlcr..:st Paid 
Issue o f Compul~ory Conv..:rtibk O..:bcnturcs 
Net cas h flow fnuu / (used) in fin:m cing activities 

N et increase/ (decrease) in cas h and c,L-; h equivalents ( A+ B+C ) 
C as h and c as h equivalents :it the beJ.! inninJ! o f the year 

C a.-; h and cas h ec1uiv.1lents :it tin· e nd ofthe pc 1iod 

C :JS h a nd c as h equivale nts as pe r cas h flow s tate ment 

C a s h on hand 
Ha lance with banks in c urr..:m account 

For the year cm.led 
3 1 March 2023 

(24.-150) 

23.247 
(370) 

11 .088 

3.000 

12.5 16 

29 

(709) 

193 
87 

23 
604 

(266) 

12.47 M 

12,478 

( 1.04. 102) 
(0) 

( 1.818) 

( 1 .. 326) 

11.063 

158 
(96.025) 

1 .. 04 .. 234 
( 18.)09) 

85.925 

2.376 
5 2 7 

2.904 

2.9 04 

2.904 

(Rs. In '000) 
For the year e nded 

3 1 M~u-ch 2022 

( 15.3%) 

13.921 
(7,13) 

6.<,35 

4.-t l S 

4.848 
10.71 4 

7(,2 

( 1.413) 

(33) 

89 

160 
19.545 

19.545 

(90.8:lO) 

736 

(42.6 13) 

773 
( 1.3 1,93 .. q 

84 .. 050 
(2.243) 
29 .. 961 

1. 11.7 68 

(622) 
1. 148 

5 27 

527 

527 

C as h aml c:1s h c quiv.ilcnts as per Balance s hee t 2 ,904 527 

Notes 
I. The cash flow statement is prepared under Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS 7 .. Statement of Cash Flows notified 

under section 133 of the Companies Act.2013. 
2. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet. 
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements: 1-4 I 

As per our report of even date 

For ABCD & Co. For Broil Solar Energy Private Limited 
Charlercd Accountants 
Firm No: 0164 I SS 

Vina , 
Mem 1ip No: 214520 
Place: Chennai. 
Date: 23.05.2023 

Kalpesh Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 07966090 
Place: Chennai 

u, ndrakumar J,· 
Director 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Chennai 



BROIL SOLAR ENERGY PRI VAT E LIMITE D 
C IN: U74999T N201 7PTC116769 
Statement or C ha nges in Equity for th e yea r ended 31 March 2023 

(Rs. Jn '000) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Partic ulars No orSharc s Amount 
Equity shares lN R I O each issued. s ubscribed and fully paid 
As at 3 1s t Marc h 2022 27,20,672 27,207 
Issue of equity s hares - -
As at 3 1s t M:trch 2023 27,20 ,672 27,207 

B. OTH ER EQUITY 

Re taine d 
Securities Equity Compone nt o f Total e quity 

Partic ulars 
E:1rnings 

Premium Compound Financial attributable to 
Rc s c r\'C lns tn1mc nt equity ho lde rs 

As at 3 1 Marc h 2022 (87.7 16) 80.120 29.940 22,3-U 
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (36,108) - - (36. 108) 
As a t 3 1 March 2023 ( 1,23 ,825) 80, 120 29,940 ( 13,765) 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements: 1-4 I 
As per our report or even date 
For ABCD & Co. For Broil Solar Energy Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 l64 l5S 

Vinay mar Bachhawat - Partner 
Membership No: 214520 
Place: Chennai. 
Date: 23.05.2023 

Kalpcsh Kumar 
Director 
DI 1: 07966090 
Place: Chcnnai 

~ 

:};t 
Sunny Chandrakumar Jain 
Director 
DIN: 07544759 
Place: Chennai 



BRO IL SOLA R ENERGY PRIVATE LI MITED 
C IN: U7-t999TN2017PTC116769 

otcs to Standa lone Financia l Statements fo r the year ended 3 I Ma rch 2023 

I. Corporate Informa tion 
BROIL SOLA R ENERGY PRI VATE LIMITED is incorporated in May 20 17 having its registered office in Tamil 
Nadu. registered under the Companies Act 2013. It is formed to act as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for the limited 
purpose to develop, execute. manage. and run solar power generation project. 

2. Basis of Prepa ration 

a. Compliance with Ind AS 
The linancial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notilied under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act. 20 I 3 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standnrcls) Rules. 20 15 (as 
amended)] and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accou111ing standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 
Details of the Company's significant accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

b. His torical cos t convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the following: 
- certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; 
- de fi ned benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and 
- share-based payments measured at fair value. 

c. New and amended s tandards adopted 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting. 
Standards) Amendment Rules. 2022 which amended certain accounting standards, and arc effective 1 April 2022. 
These amendments did not have any im pact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to 
significantly affect the current or future periods. 

d. Operating Cycle 
Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time bet\\ ecn acquisition of assets and their 
realizmion in cash or cash equivalents. the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months fo r the purpose 
of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-cum:nt. 

e. Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entiry operates (" the functional currency'). The financial statements arc presented in Indian 
rupee. which is the Company·s functional and presentation currency. 

f. Use of estimates 
In preparing these financial statements. Management has made judgments. estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses. Actual re ult 
could differ from those estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions arc reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates arc 
recognized prospectively. 
Judgements are made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized 
in the financial statements and the same is disclosed in the re levant notes to the fi nancial statements . 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a signi fieant risk of resulting in a material adjustment arc reviewed 
on an on-going basis and the same is disclosed in the relevant notes to the linancial statements. 

g. Measurement of fair values 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability. the Company take. 
into account the characteristics of the asset or liabi lity if market participant~ would take those characteristics into 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / isclosrn'e 

urposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis and measurements that have s •c:s Oan · s to 
....t:::=~ ....... 1aluc but are not fai r value, such as net realisable value in Ind A 2 or value in use in Ind AS i°' "'O 

~Q (") r RN 016415~ f/l 

.L. ~ r..ir 1 C.. 
~ .;? 



In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level I, 2 or 3 based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the 
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 
- Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can 
access at the measurement elate. 
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I , that are observable for the asset or 
l iability, either directly (i.e.as prices) or indirectly ( i.e .. derived from prices): 
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

3. S ig nificant Accou nting Policies 

a. Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are rendered to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the considerat ion to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration. adjusted for discounts and other 
incentives, if any. as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts 
collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. I f the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount. the 
Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to 
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable 
that a signi ficant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised wi II not occur when the associated 
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. 

b. Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net real izable value. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase. 
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condit ion. Cost 
includes all taxes and duties but excludes duties and taxes that are subsequently recoverable from tax authorities. 

The methods o f determining cost of various cate0 ories of inventories are as fol lows· ' ' •!-', 

Description Methods of determ ining cost 

Raw Materials rirst-ln-First-Out (F lrO) 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less estimated costs for completion and sale. Obsolete, slow moving 
and defective inventories are identified from time to time and, where necessary, a provision is made for such 
inventories. 

c. Property, plant and eq uipment 
i. Tangible 
Tangible prope11y, plant and equipment (PPE) acquired by the Company are reported at acqu1s1t1on cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. T he acquisition cost includes any cost 
anributable for bringing an asset to its working condition net of tax/duty credits availed, which comprises of purchase 
consideration and other directly at1ributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended 
use. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably . 

ii. Capital work-in-progress 
PPE not ready for the intended use on the elate of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as "capital work- in-progress .. and 
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest. 

ii i. Intangible 
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are at1 ributable to the asset 
w i II flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably . Intangible assets are stated at original 
cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administrative 
and other general overhead expenses that are speci fically attributable to the acquisition of intangible assets are 
al located and capital ised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on software support and maintenance 
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred. · 

cD & C 
. _ iv. Intangible assets under development v,~O. 

,.,,~ El\! . ngible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet arc disclosed as·• ntahg.;ip)x,~Rs11'$n nder 
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v. Depreciation and Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for tangible propeny. plant and equipment is the cost ofan asset. or other amount substituted for 
cost. less its estimated residual val ue. Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on 
the written down method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013. Depreciation 
method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset. 
The estimated useful Ii fe and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change 
in the estimates of useful li fe/residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation for additions 
to/deductions on owned assets is calculated pro rata to the remaining period of use. Depreciation charge for impaired 
assets is adjusted in future periods in such a mnnner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its 
remaining useful li fe. All capital assets with individual value less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year in 
which they are purchased. 

E . :.st1mate d use u 1 e cons1 ere IV t 1e f I n .d d b I C ompanv arc: 

Asset Estimated Useful Life 

Computer Equipment 3 Years 
Office Equipment 3 Years 
Furniture Fittings 10 Years 
Plant and Machinerv 25 Years 
Software 5 Years 

vi. Impairment of assets 
Upon an observed trigger or at the end of each accounting year. the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 
PPE. investment property and intangible asset to determine whether there is any indication that the asset have suffered 
an impairment loss. If such indication exists. the PPE. investment propeny and intangible assets are tested for 
impairment so as to determ ine the impairment loss. if any. 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is the higher of fa ir value less cost of disposal and value in use. 

vii. De-recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 
An item of PPE and intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE 
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
f-or the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand. 
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities or 
three months or less that arc readily convcniblc to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value. and bank overdrafts. 

c. Foreign C urrency Transaction 
f-oreign currency transactions arc translated into the funct ional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. f-oreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates arc 
generally recognized in statement profit and loss. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely 
to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of entity's net investment in that foreign operation. Non­
monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fa ir value arc 
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and 
non-monetary liabilities denom inated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translat~d at the 
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. 
f-oreign exchange differences arising on translation of foreign currency borrowings are presented in the statement or 
profit and loss, within fi nance costs. All other fore ign exchange gains and losses arc presented in the tcmcnt or 
profit and loss on a net basis within other income or other expense. <qcO & c 
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The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end or 
the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes prov isions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The Company measures its tax balances for uncertain tax positions 
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction 
of the resolution of the uncertainty. 
Deferred income tax is provided in full. using the liability method, on temporary diflcrences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statrments. Deferred income tax is not 
accoumed for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred 
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the 
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred 
income tax liability is settled. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and for unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses. 
Deferred tax assets and I iabi litics are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabi lities 
arc offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis. or to 
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously within the same jurisdiction. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to item 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case. the tax is also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or di rectly in equity. respectively. 

g. Provisions, and Contingencies 
Provisions arc recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructi ve) as result of a past event. 
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation. and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period. taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the prcse111 obl igation. its carrying amount is the preselll 
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). The discount rate used to determine 
the present val ue is a pre-tax. rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
spec ific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. A 
disclosure for contingent liabili ties is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may 
probably not require an outflow of resources or an obl igation for wh ich the futu re outcome cannot be ascertained with 
reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outllow of resources is 
remote. no provision or disclosure is made. 
Provision for onerous contracts i.e., contacts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under 
the contract exceed the economic benetits expected to be received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an 
out!low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an 
obligating event, based on reliable estimate of such obligation. 

h. Earnings Per Share 
(i) Bas ic ea rnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: - the profit attributable to owners of the Company - by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus 
elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. 

(ii) Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the ligures used in the detcrm ination of basic earnings per share to take 
into account: 
- the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity 
shares, and 
- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
- potentially issuable equity shares. that could potenti:tlly dilute basic earnings per share, arc not included 
in the calculation of di luted earnings per share when they are anti-dilutive for the pcri 12fes,e C' d. 

*~~~ 
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i. Cash Flow Statements 
Cash flows arc reported using the indirect method. whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects or 
transr1c1ions of a non-cash nature. any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating. 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. 

j. Financial Instruments: 
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
or the instrument. All financial assets and liabil ities arc recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trndc 
receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that arc directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue or financial assets and financial liabilities. which arc not at fair value through profit or loss. arc 
added to the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recogn ized immediately in profit or loss. 
Classi fic:ttion 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income. or through profit or 
loss), and 
- those measured m amortised cost. 
The classification depends on entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of 
the cash flow. 
For assets measured at fair value. gains and losses will ei ther be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income. For investments in debt instruments. this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. 
For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at 
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets 
changes. 
Recognition 
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date. the date on which the Company 
commits to purchase or sale the financial asset. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Debt Instruments 
i) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash nows and the contractual terms of the financinl asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
Interest income from these financial assets is inc luded in other income using the effective interest rate method. /\ny 
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses arc presented as a 
separate line item in statement of profit and loss. 

ii) Financial Assets :it Fair Val ue through Other Comprehensive Income 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash nows and selling financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on speci ficd dates to cash flows that arc solely payment. of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable election for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other 
comprehensive income based on its business model. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI. except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses. 
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognized. the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to the 
statement of profit and loss and recognised under other income/ other expenses. Interest income from these financinl 
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Pro fit o r Loss 
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FYOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. /\ 
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part ofa 
hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in the p~riod 

~ ::::=:::::::i~c,h it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income. e,D & 
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iv) Equity Instruments 
The Company subsequemly measures all equity investments at fai r value. Where the Company has elected to present 
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income. there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to pro lit or loss following the derccognition oft he investment. Di vidends 
from such investments are recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company 's right to receive payments 
is established. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss arc recognized in the 
statement o f profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured 
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value. 

v) Impairment of Financial Assets 
T he Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which 
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component 
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets. ECLs arc measured at an amount equal 
to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which ea e 
those arc measured at lifetime ECL, as applicable, as the case may be. The amount ofECLs (or reversals. i f any) that 
is required to adjust the loss allowance at the repo11ing date to the amount that is requi red to be recognized is 
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the profit or loss. 

vi) Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabil i ty and equity instruments issued by a Company are classilicd as either financial liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument. 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using rhe effective interest method, except for 
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination. which is subsequently measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date. the carry ing amounts 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

vii) Derccognition of Financial Instruments 
Financial Asset 
A financial asset is dcrecognized only when 
- the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash nows from the financial asset or 
- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash 0ows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to 
pay the cash 0ows to one or more recipients. 
Where the entity has transferred an asset. the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is dcrecognizcd. Where rhe entity has 
not transferred substantial ly all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. the finnncial asset is not 
dcrecognized. 
Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derccognizcd i f the Company has not retained control of the fi nancial asset. 
Where the Company retains contro l of the financial asset. the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of 
continuing involvement in the financial asset. 
Financial Liability 
/\ financial liability is derecognizcd when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

k. Leases 
The company assesses w hether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A contract is. or contains. 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi fied asset for a period o f time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. th e company 
assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the company has substantially all of the 
economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) rhe company has the right to direct 
the use of the asset. The company has appl ied the exemption of not to recognize Right to Use assets and liabilities for 
leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date o f initial application as a practical expediency. For these 
short term and low value leases, rhe Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight 
line basis over the term of the lease. 

I. Inventories 
Inventories (raw material - components including assemblies and sub assemblies) are stated at the lower of cosr and 
net realisable value. Cost of inventory includes cost of purchases and all other costs incurred in bringing the 

J.-::::::::=::~::,,,,. .. tories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of invent ll)c asis of 
average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary co s,~ i&l le s 
ted costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. (, /."tl o,c;.115 · 0, 
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111. Trade Receivables 
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course or 
business and reflects company 's unconditional right to consideration (that is. payment is due only on the passage or 
time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing 
components. The company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash nows and 
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effect ive interest method. less loss allowance. 
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled 
revenue. 
/\ receivable is a right to consideration that is conditional only upon passage of time. Revenue in excess of billings is 
recorded as unbilled revenue and is classified as a financial asset as only the passage or time is required before the 
payment is due. Invoicing in excess of earnings are classified as contract liabilities which is disclosed as deferred 
revenue. 
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue arc presented ncr of impairment in the Balance Sheet. 

n. Trade Payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial )Car 
which are unpaid. The amounts arc usually unsecured. Trade payables arc presented as current liabilities unless 
payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period. They arc recognized initially at their fair value 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

o. Borrowings 
Borrowings are initially recognized at fair val ue, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 
is recognized in prolit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 
establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some 
or all of the facility will be drawn clown. In this case. the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent 
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the fr1cility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as n 
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the fac ility to which it relates. 
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged. cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred 
to another party and the consideration paid. including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed. is 
recognised in Statement of profit and loss under other expenses. 
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of material provision of a long 
term loan arrangement on or before the date of the reporting period,, ith the effect that the liability becomes payable 
on demand on the reporti ng date. the Company docs not classify the liability as current. if the lender agreed. after the 
reporting period and before approval of the financial statements for issue. not to demand payment as a consequence 
of the breach. 

p. Except ional items 
When an item of income or expense within Statement of profit and loss from ordinary activity is of such size. nature 
or incidence that its disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the year. the nature and 
amount of such items is disclosed as exceptional items. 
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-t. P roperty, Plant and Equipment 

T ang ible Assets 

Desc riptio n 

Balance as at 3 1st March 2022 

Additions 

Deletions 

Balance as at 3 1s t March 2023 

Accumulate d De preciat io n 

Balance as at 3 1s t Ma rch 2022 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

Balance as at 3 1 s t Ma rch 2023 

et B lock 

Balance as at 3 1s t M arch 2023 

Balance as at 3 Is t M :trch 2022 

5. Capita l Work in Progress 

C apital Work in Progress - Service 
Capital Work In Progress- Supply 

Plant & Ollicc 
Machincrv Eauinmc nts 

Computers 

1,27,342 

1.34.959 

2.596 

2,59,705 

2 1,335 

23,077 

435 

-t3,977 

2, 15,727 

1,06,007 

3 1-Ma r-23 

5,823 

57.403 

63,226 

-t2 1,85 1 

- -
- -
-t2 1,85 1 

40 1,7 12 

- 55 

- -
-to 1,767 

2 

2 

8-t 

139 

3 1-Ma r-22 

6,607 

85.31 4 

9 I ,921 

C apital W o rk in Prog ress - Age ing Sche dule 

f-or capitri l-work-in pronrcss follow in~ aocin" schedule shall be given· ' < :::, ~ :::, ,,., < 

A mo unt in CWIP fo r a p e ,; o d of 

Furniture 

250 

-
-
250 

19 1 

15 

-
206 

...... 
59 

Pa rtic ulars Less tha n 
1-2 yea rs 2 -3 years 

3 years a nd 
o ne vca.- above 

As a t 3 1st Ma,·ch 2023 

Indian Army 6 1A38 1.788 - -
Tota l 6 1,43 8 I , 788 - -
As a t 3 1st M a rc h 2022 

Indian Army 90.750 1.171 

Total 9 0 ,750 I , I 7 1 - -

6. lnta noiblc Assets .... 
Descriptio n Software Total 

G ross B lock 

Bala nce as a t 3 1 s t Marc h 2022 862 862 

Additions - -
Bala nce as a t 3 1s t Marc h 2 023 862 862 

Accumula ted De preciat io n 

B ala nce as a t 3 1 s t M a rc h 2022 640 640 

C harge for the year 100 100 

B ala nce as a t 3 1s t M a rc h 2023 7-t0 7-t0 

Ne t B lock 

B ala nce as a t 3 1s t M arc h2023 122 122 

Bala nce as a t 3 1s t M arch 2022 222 2 22 

(Rs. /11 '000) 

Total 

I ,29,-t85 

1.34.959 

2.596 

2,6 I ,8-t8 

23,278 

23.147 

.135 

-tS,990 

2, 15,857 

1,06,207 

&c 
0 .,, 

~,a.~~,.~·,., 
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7. Investments 

Particulars 

Investme nt in Subsidiaries - Measured at Cost 
Inves tment in Equity Shares 
SIL Jupite r Solar Private Limited* 
SIL Mercury Solar Private Limited 
SIL Neptune Solar Private Limited* 

Sunedison Roofnop Solar SPV 6 Private Limited* 

Total 

(Rs. !11 '000) 

Face Value As at 3 1 March 2023 As at 3 1 March 2022 

pe r S IHu-c No.of Shares Value No.of Shares Value 

~ 10 99,999 1,000 

~ 10 1.00.000 1.000 1.00.000 1.000 
~ 10 99,999 1,000 

~ 10 99.999 1.000 

1,000 4 ,000 
*During the year, these companies has applied for voluntary strike off and the investment amount has been 
completely written off. 

8. Loans - Non-Current 
(Unsecured and Considered Good) 

Loans a nd advances to Relaled parties 

Total 

As at 
31-Mar-23 

1.426 

1,426 

As at 

3 1-M.u-22 

100 

Loans are given for \VOrking capital requirements. The loan carries an interest rate of 8% per annum (P. Y - 6.5% p.a) 
on the outstand ing amount. (Re.fer Note 32) 

9. Other Financial Assets - Non-Current 
Bank Deposits 
Security Deposits 

Total 

JO. Other Assets - Non-Current 

Capita l Advances 

Total 

11. Trade Receivables 
(Unsecured and Considered Good) 

T rade Receivables 
Total 

A!!e ln!! o fT d R bi ra e ece1va es: 

7.51 2 

16200 

23,7 12 

3 1,550 

31,550 

5,489 

16.200 

21,689 

42,613 

42,613 

29 

29 

Outs t:mding for fo llowi112 nc riods from due date o f payment 
Particulars Less than 6 Months - 1-2 2-3 3 years and 

Total 
6 Months I Year vca,-s ye a,-s above 

As at 31 s t Ma rch 2023 

(Q Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
As at 3 1st March 2022 
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 29 - - - - 29 

Total 29 - - - - 29 

12. Cash and Cash Equivalent 
Cash on hand 

w ith Banks 
. C urre nt Accounts 2,904 527 

Cash Equiva lents as per Balance Sheet 2 ,904 527 

Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Stat 2 ,904 527 



13. Other Financial Assets - Current 

I ntercst Accrued not due 

U napplied Reccipcs 

Total 

14. Other Current Assets 
(Unsecured and Considered Good) 

Balance w ith Govt A uthorities 

O the rs 

Total 

15. Share Capital 

Authoris e d 
61.00.000 Equity Shares oft I O each 

Issue d. Subscribed and Paid up 
27.20.672 Equity Shares oft 10 each 

3 1 

As at 

3 1-Mar-23 

6 

2,143 
2 , 149 

252 
3 10 

563 

(Rs. In '000) 
As at 

31-M.ir-22 

0 

1.434 

1,-B-t 

190 
565 

756 

As at As at 
March 2023 3 1 March 2022 

6 1.000 6 1.000 

61 ,000 6 1,000 

27.207 27.207 

27.207 27,207 

"· Reconciliation of tl,e share.,; outsu11uling 11t the 
beginning and at the end of the reporting period 
Equity Shares 

3 1 
Number 

March 2023 
Amo unt 

3 1 March 2022 

Number Amount 

/\ t the commencement of the year 
Shares issued during the year 

A t the end o f the year 

27.20.672 

27,20,672 

27.207 27.20.672 27.207 

27,207 27,20,672 27.207 

h.Rigltt.\·, p ref erences and restriction.\· attached 10 eq11i~1• .\·/tares 
T he company has a sing le c lass of equity shares. Accordingly. a ll equity s hores rank equally with regard to dividends ond 

sharc in the company's res idua l assets. The equity s harcsholders arc cntitlcd to receive dividend as declared from time to 

timc after subject 10 dividend to prefere nce shareholders . The voting rights of a n equity shareholder on a poll (not show of 

ha nds) arc in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the company. 

O n winding up of the company, the holde r of equity shares w ill be entitled to receive the res idual assets of the company. 

rcmaining after distribution of all preferential nmounts in proportion to the number of ..:quity shares held. 

c. Particulars of.\"lwre/,o/ders ho/din,: m ore titan 
5 % share.\· of a class of.\·/wres 

Equity sha res o n 10 eac h fully paid held by 

Sh..:risha Solar LLP 

d. Partic11/11r.'i of s/wrelwldi11g of 
Promoters 

Number 

2720.672 
27,20,672 

3 1 March 2023 3 1 March 2022 

Number (% of total 
s ha res) 

Numbe r ('¼, o f total 
s hares) 

27.20.672 

27.20 .672 

31 March2023 

(% of 

total 

shares) 

100%, 

100% 

(% of change in 
s hares during 

the year) 

0% -------
0 % 

100% 27.20.672 100% 

100°/o 27,20,672 100 % 

31 March 2022 
Number (% of (% of change in 

to tal s ha res during 

s hares) the year) 

27.20,672 100% 0% - ---'--- - ---------27,20,672 100% 0% ----'-------------



16. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 

Securities Pre rniwn Reserve 

Equity component of compulsorily convertible 

debentures 
Total 

A RETA I NED EARNI NGS 
Opening Balance 

Add : Surplus/Loss during the yea r 
C los ing Balance 

B SECURITY PREMIUM R ESERVE 
Opening Bala nce 
C los ing Balance 

C EQUITY COM PONENT OF COM POU D 
F I NANCIAL INSTRUMENT 
Opening ba lance 

Add: Debentures issued during the year 

Less: Liability component of Compulsory Convertible 

Debentures 

C losing Balance 

Total 

As at 

3 l-Mar-23 

( 1.23.825) 

80.1 20 

29.940 

( 13,765) 

(87,7 16) 

(36, 108) 

( 1,23,825) 

80.120 

80, 120 

29,940 

29,940 

( 13 ,765) 

(Rs !11 '000) 
As at 

3 1-Mar-22 

(87.7 16) 

80. 120 

29.940 

22,3-U 

(52.436) 

(35.280) 

(87,7 16) 

80.120 

80, 120 

29.961 

2 1 

29,940 

22,34-1 

T he compound linancial instrument relates to the Compulsory Convertible Debentures ('CCD') issued by the company. 

31 Marc h 2023 3 1 Marc h 2022 
N umber Amount Numbe r Amo un t 

Iss ued, S ubscribe d and Paid up 

Compulsory Convertible Debentures oft 10 each 29,96,128 29.961 29,96. 128 29.961 
29,96, 128 29,96 1 29,96, 128 29,96 1 

3 1 March 2023 3 1 M arc h 2022 fl.Reco11cilit1titm nf the debentures 011t.,·tr11u/i11g at tlte _______________________ , 

hegi1111i11;: a11d at tlte em/ of rite reportiu,: p eriod 

C ompulsory Convertible Debe ntu res 
/\ t the commencement of the year 

Debemures issued during the year 

A t the e nd o fthc year 

N umbe r 

29.96.128 

29,96 , 128 

h. Rights, preferences and restrictio11.\· attaclted to Debentures 

Amount 

29,961 

29,961 

N umber A mo un t 

29.96.128 29.961 
29,96,128 29,96 1 

0.0 I % Compulsory convertible debentures were issued in the month or October 2021 (29.96.128 debentures @ Rs. I 0) 

pursuant to the debenture holder's agreement.Compulsory convertible debentures are convertible into equity share of par 
value Rs. I 0/- in the ratio of I: I. 

These debentures a re convertible into equity shares of the Company at the option or debenture holders after a period of 9 
years from the a llotment and upto completion of9 years 10 months from the date of a llotment. The holders of these 
debentun:s are l."!ntitled to an interest of 0.0 I% on par value of debentures. The debenture.: holders an;: entitled to one vote 

per debe111.ure at meetings of the Company on any resolutions of the Company directly involving their rights. 

c. Particular.,· of Debe11tureltolrlers Ito/ding_ more titan 5 % ___ 3_1_M_a_,_·c_h_2_0_2_3 _____ _ 3_1 _M_ a_r_cl_1_2_0_2_2 ___ 
1 

debe11t11re of a class of dehe11tures Number '1/o N umber '1/o 

Sherisha Solar 29.96.128 I 00% 29.96.1 28 100% 

29,96,128 I 00% 29,96, 128 I 00 '¼, 



17. Borrowings- Long Term 

SECURED 

Bank Borrowings from Bank & FI 
Less: Current Maturities of Long term Borrwings 

Total 

As at 

3 1-Mar-23 

222.612 
( 11.404) 

2 ,11 ,208 

(Rs. !II ·ooo; 
As at 

3 1-Mar-22 

69.898 

69,898 

Bank Borrowings includes 1he Term loan sanct ioned by HDFC Bank of Rs. 9.5crores of which 9.50 crorcs sanctioned 
during the year 2022-23. The loan is repayable in 16 years. Loan is secured by hypo1heca1ion of specific movable assets 
pertaining to Diwana project and personal guarantee of Anil Jain and Corporate guarantee of Sherisha Solar LLP and 
Sherisha Technologies Pri vate Limited. The loan carries an interesl rate of 9.36% as on 31.03.2023. 

Borrowings from Financial lnstilution includes the Tenn loan sanctioned by Indian Renewable Energy Development 
Agency Limi1ed of Rs 14 crores of which 7.1 crores sanctioned during the year 2021-22. The loan is repayable in 15 yea rs. 
Loan is secured by hypothecation of all movable assets pertaining to the project and personal guarantee of A nil Jain and 
Corporate guarantee of Sherisha Solar LLP. Pledge of 51 % of Equi1y shares and CCD of the company by Sherisha Solar 
LLP. The loan carries an interest rate of 9.25% as on 31.03.2023 (31.03.2022: 9.20%). 

UNSECUR ED 
Inter Corporate Deposits from Rela1ed Par1ies 
Liability component of Compound Financial lnstrumenl 
Total 

73,654 
19 

73,673 

1.22. 131 
21 

1,22, 152 

ln1er Corporate Loans are wken for working capital rcquircmen1s. No Interest is being charged by Shcrisha Solar LLP after 
ils conversion from Private Limiled Company (28th Oc1ober 2020). (Refer Note 32) 

18. Borrowings - Current 

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 
Total 

19. Trade Paya blcs Due To 

Micro and Sma ll Enterprise 
Other than Micro and Small Enterprise 
T o ta l 

A!!c ine ofTradc P:wablcs: 

11,404 

11 ,404 

418 

43 
46 1 

270 
104 

374 

Outs rnncling for fo llowing pc riods from clue d:1tc o f pavmc nt 
Pai·tic ul:,rs 

As at3 1s t March 2023 
( i) MSME 
(ii) Othe rs 
Total 
As :it3 1s t March 2022 
( i) M SM E 
(ii) O thers 
Total 

20. Other Financial Liabilities - Current 

Interest accrued and 
Other Payables 
Total 

Less than 
1-2 yc:u-s 

one vcar 

4 18 -
43 -

46 1 -

130 -
211 -
34 1 -

3 years and 
2-3 years 

abov e 

- -
- -
- -

- -
33 -
33 -

3 

250 
253 

Total 

4 18 
43 

46 1 

130 
244 
374 

7.225 
227 

7,452 



21. Provision 

Provis ion for Expenses 

Total 

22. Other Current Liabilities 

Statutory Dues (GST, TDS. etc .. ) 
Advance For Project 

T otal 

23. Revenue from Operations 

Sa le of Power 

Sa le of Products 

Unbilled Revenue 
Total 

2-t. Other Income 

Interest I ncorne 

Other I ncorne 
Total 

25. Cost of Materials Consumed 

1 ncrcasc/ Decrease in Inventory 
Total 

26. Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salar ies and wages 
Total 

27. Finance Cost 

Interest cost 
/mer es! 0 11 l111e r Corµo role D eµosil.~ 

!mer est 011 Financ ial liubili1y - OCD 

/111er es1 011 Ter111 Loan 

Other Borrowing Cost 
Total 

28. Depreciation & Amortisation 

Depreciation 
Total 

As :it 

3 1-Mar-23 

692 
692 

249 

249 

(Rs. In '000) 
A s at 

3 1- Mar-22 

89 
89 

15 

500 
515 

For the Year ended For the Year e nded 
3I-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 

19,103 

750 

709 

20,562 

370 

967 

1,337 

2,161 

2,16 1 

11,088 

I 

I l.(186 

85 
I I , I 73 

23,247 

23,2-t7 

10.739 

92 
I 0,83 1 

743 

4 
-t 

6.635 
6.61./ 

II 
6,6-t6 

13.921 

13,92 1 



29. Other Expenses 

Rates and Taxes 

Bad debts 

Bank C harges 

Project Expenses 

Professiona l Fees 

Travelling Expenses 

Payment to Auditors 

Fines & Pena lties 

Loss on dimuntion of Investment 

Operations and Mainte nance 

Subscr iption cha rges 

Rebate 

Inte res t on T DS / GST 

Ins urance Expenses 

Miscellaneous Expenses 
Total 

Payment to Auditors 
Statutory /\udit 

Certification and Othe r Charg..:s 

30. Tax Expenses 

C urre nt Tax 

Deferred Tax 

Tax reported in Profit & Loss 

A Deferred Tax Liabilties/(Asset) - Net 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Fixe d assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and 

depreciation/amortisation for financ ia 1 reporting 

Effect o f Cost of Finance 

Gross De te rrcd Tax Liability 

Net Deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) 

8 Reconciliation of De ferred Tax liabilitv 
Opening Deferred Tax Laibility / (Asse t) 
Deferred C redit recorded in Statement of Profit & Loss 

Deferred Tax Liabilties/(Asse t) - Net 

(Rs. /11 '000) 
For the Year ended Fo r the Year e nded 

3 1-Mar-23 3 1-Mar-22 

42 

20 
222 

2.218 

130 
725 

3,000 

2.591 

10 

18 

659 

132 

9,767 

550 
175 

725 

391 

9 

1,021 
372 

1.033 

68-1 

2.398 

24 
384 

78 

6,397 

525 

159 
684 

For the year ended For the year e nded 
3 1s t March 2023 31st March 2022 

11 .659 
I 1,659 

As at 3 1 March 
2023 

30,489 . 

638 
3 1, 128 

3 1, 128 

19,469 

11,659 
3 1, 128 

19.885 
19,885 

As at 31 March 
2022 

19.469 

19,469 

19,469 

(4 I 6) 

19.885 
I 9,469 



31. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

a. We ig hted average number of equity shares 

outs tanding during the pe riod 

b.Effecl o f dilulive common 

e quiva lent s hares - Compulsory Convertible De be ntures 

c. we ighted average number of equity shares and 

commo n equiva le nt s hares o utstanding 

Diluted Enrnings 

Profo After Tax 

Add: l111e res t o n Financia l L iability - CCD 

Total Dilutive Earnings 

Earnings pe r equity s hare (of face value of Rs. l O each) 

Basic (in Rs) 

Diluted* ( in Rs) 

31-03-2023 

27.20.672 

29.96,128 

57, I 6 ,800 

(36.108) 

I 

(36, I 07) 

( 13.27) 
( 13.27) 

(Rs. /11 '000) 

31-03-2022 

2 7.20.672 

14.52.917 

-t 1,73,589 

(35,280) 

I 

(35,280) 

( 12.97) 

( 12. 97) 

* As the company has incurred loss during the year ended 3 1" March 2023 and 3 1 $ I March 2022. diluti ve effect on 
we ig hted average number of shares would have an anti-dilutive impact and hence. not considered in Diluted EPS 
computation. 

32. Related Party Transactions 

A. List o f Related Parties 1 

N f I I d ameo t te re ate partv aru 

Nature ofRelationship 
Ultimate Holding Company 

Intermediary Ho lding Company 
Holding Company 

Subsidiary Companies 

Entities in which share holders / 

d irectors 
exert s ignificant influence 

Dirt!ctors 

nature o f I • re ahons 11p 

Name of the Related Party 

Re fex Renewables & Infrastructure Limited2 

Re fcx G reen Power Limited3 

Sherisha Solar LLP 

SIL Jtrnite r So lar Private Limited4 

SIL Mercury Sol:u Private Limited 

SIL Neptune Solar Private Limited'1 

Suncdison Rooflon Solar S PY 6 Priva te Limited 4 

Sherisha Technologies Private Limited 
SILRES Enen .. 'V Solutions Private Limited 

Sherisha Solar SPY Two Private Limited 

Refcx Green Power Limited 

Torrid Solar Power Private Limited 
Megamic Electronics Private Limited 
Engender Deve lopers Private Limited 

Kalpesh Kumar 

C handesh Jain (resiQned 11'.e ./'05. /0.2022) 
Sunny C hnadrakumar Jain (appointed ir.e.(05. 10.2022) 

1 as identified by the management and relied upon by the auditor's . 
2 With effect from 25th October 2022. the name of the Company was changed from ·Sunedison Infrastructure 
Lim ited' to "Refex Renewablcs & Infrastructure Limited". 
3 With effect from 5th May 2022. the name of'the Company was changed from ·SIL Rooftop Solar Power Private 
Limited' to ·' Refex Green Power Private Lim ited''. Furthe r with effect from I 0th May 2023. the name of the 
Company was changed from 'Re fex Green Power Private Limited' to "Refcx Green Power Limited". 
~ These companies are under the process of s triking o ff. ~ f') .n c 

\~0 
t-. /...,:, 016415~ U" 
:, a,-1 _ 

<;>) ~ .. 
~ !-. .... -
~ ~ 
'l"ed Acr.:,0 



(Rs. /11 '000) 
B. Transactions with Related Parties 

Nature ofthe Tr:msaction 1ame of Related Party 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 3 1, 2023 March 3 1. 2022 
Compulsary Convertible Debentures 
Issued (Issue Price) Shcrisha Solar LLP - 29.961 
Capital Advance Given Refex Rencwables & lnfras1ructurc Li111i1cd 90.2-13 -
Capi1al Work in Progress Refex Rcnewablcs & Infrastructure Limited 1.0 1.306 82.730 

Project Management Service - CWIP Ref ex Green Power Limited - 3.186 
Interest Income SIL Jupiter Solar Private Limited 0 -I 

I ntcrest Income SIL !Vlcrcury Solar Private Limited 18 -I 

Interest Income SIL Neptune Solar Private Limited I -I 

Interest Income Sunedison Rooftop Solar SPY 6 Private Limited 0 -I 

Interest Expense - CCD Sherisha Solar LLP 3 -
Interest Exoensc SIL Jupiter Solar Private Limited 0 -
Interest Exocnsc Suncdison Rooftop Solar SPY 6 Private Limited 0 -
I ntercst E:-.pensc SILRES Energy Solutions Pri,·atc Limited - 9 
I ntercst Expense Rcfex Green Power Limited - 6.626 

Repairs & Maintenance Mcgamic Electronics PriYatc Limited - 26 
Loan Advanced Shcrisha Solar SPY Two Pri,·atc Limited - -10 
Loan Repayment Received Sherisha Solar SPY Two Private Limited - -10 
Loan Advanced SIL Jupiter Solar Private Limited 14 -
Loan Repayment Received SIL Jupiter Solar Privmc Limited 14 209 
Loan Advanced SIL Mcrcurv Solar Pri,·atc Limited IJ26 100 
Loan Repa, 111cm Received SIL Mercury Solar Pri\'ate Limited - 209 

Loan Ad,a nced SIL Neptune Solar Pri,·atc Limited 69 -
Loan Repayment Received SIL Neptune Solar Private Limited 69 210 
Loan Advanced Sunedison Rooftop Solar SPY 6 Private Limited 14 -
Loan Repayment Received Sunedison Rooftop Solar SPY 6 Priva1c Limited 1-1 209 
Loan Repaid SIL Jupiter Solar Pri,·ate Limited 3-10 -
Loan Borrowed SIL Jupiter Solar Pri,·atc Limited 3-W -
Loan Repaid SIL Neptur1c Solar Private Limited 381 -
Loan Borrowed SIL Neptune Solar Pri\'ate Limited 381 -
Loan Repaid Sunedison Rooftop Solar SPY 6 Private Limited 187 -
Loan Borrowed Sunedison Rooftop Solar SPY 6 Private Limited 187 -
Loan Rep.1id Refex Green Po\\er Limited - 1.25.922 

Loan Borrowed Refex Green Power Limitcd - 1.1 8.819 

Loan Repaid SILRES Energy Solutions Private Limited - -150 
Loan Repaid Shcrisha Solar LLP 1.05,786 1.62.158 
Loan Borrowed Sherisha Solar LLP 57308 1.83.85-1 

c. Bala nce as :lt year end 

Nature of the Transaction Name of Related Party 
For the yc,1r ended For the yc:tr ended 

i\larch 3 1, 2023 March 3 1. 2022 

Capital Advance Refex Rencwablcs & Infrastructure Limited 31,550 42,613 

,\dvance Receivable SILRES Energy Solutions Private Limited - 170 

Interest Receivable SIL Mercury Solar Private Limited 6 0 

Interest Payable - CCD Sherisha Solar LLP 3 I 

I ntercst Payable Rcfex Green Power Limited - 6.687 

Loan Receivable SIL Mercury Solar Private Limited 1.426 100 

Loan Payable Shcrisha Solar LLP 73.654 11 2.1 31 

0CD & C 

0~ 

~ lg rm;o1~
1
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(Rs. /11 '000) 
33. Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

The management has identified certain enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company. and 
which quali fy under the definition of 'Micro and Small Enterprises' as defi ned under Micro. Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the /\et"). Accordingly. the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such 
enterprises as at 31 st March 2023 and 3 1 st March 2022 have been made in the financial statements based on 
information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors. 

Par1iculars 

(i) Princ ipal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 
end of the account ing year 
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at 
the end of the accounting year 
(iiO The amount of interest paid a long with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year 
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at 
the end of the accounting year 
(vO The amount of further interest due and payable even in the 
succeeding year. unt il such date when the interest dues as 
above arc actually paid 

34. Fair Value Measurements 

As at 

3 1-Mar-2023 

4 18 

As at 
3 1-Mar-2022 

A. Financial Instrument by Category 
P:111icular~ As at 31 March 2023 Fair value hicnu-cltY 

:no 

FVPL FVOC I Amortised cos t Level I Level II Lc"d Ill 
Financial Assets 
Investment in Equity Instruments 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Othe r Financia l Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

Fina ncia l Liabilities 
Borrow ings 

T rade Payable 
Othe r Financ ia l L iabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITI ES 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 
Investment in Equity Instruments 
T rade Receivables 
Cash and cash equiva lents 
Loans 
Other Financia l Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
Bo rrowings 

T rade Payable 
Other Financ ial Liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

1.000 
2.904 
1.426 

25.861 
31,192 

296.285 
46 1 
253 

296,999 

As at 3 1 March 2022 Fair· value hie rarchy 
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Level I Level II Level 111 

4.000 
29 

527 
100 

23. 123 
27,779 

192,050 
374 

7.452 
199,876 



Fair value hierarchy 
Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fo r identicnl assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that arc observable for the asset or liability . either 
directly ( i .e. as prices) or indirectly ( i.e. Derived from prices). 
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabi lities that arc not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
Accordingly , these are classified as level 3 of fair value hierarchy. 

B. Financial risk management 

The Company business activities arc exposed to a variety o f financial risks. name!) liquidity risk. foreign currency 
risks and credit r isk. The Company's management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the 
Company risk management framework. The management is responsible for developing and monitoring the Com pan) 
risk management policies. The Company risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks 
faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls. periodically review the changes in 
market conditions and reflect the changes in the pol icy accordingly . The key risks and mitigating actions are also 
placed before the Board of directors of the Company . 

i. Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to n finnncial instrument lai Is to 
meet its contractual obl igations and arises principally from Company 's trade receivables and other finnncial assets. 

The carry ing amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure which is as follows: 

Trade receivables 

Cash and cash equiva lents 

Loans 

Other financial assets 

Trade receivables 

(Rs. /11 '000) 
Cart)'ing amo unt 

As at As at 
3 1 Marc h 2023 3 1 Marc h 2022 

2.904 

1.426 
25.86 1 

30, 192 

29 

527 
100 

23. 123 

23 ,779 

Tracie receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has 
always been managed by the Company through credit approvals. establishing credit limits and continuously 
monitoring the credi twonhiness of customers to which the Company grants credi t terms in the normal course of 
business. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks as at the reporting dates which has been 
measured on the 12-rnonth expected loss basis. The cred it worthi ness of such banks and financial institutions arc 
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk. 

ii. Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company wil l encounter difficulty in mceti11g obl igation. associated with financial 
liabilities that arc settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate reserves. banking facilities and reserve borrowing foci Ii ties. by continuously monitoring forecast 
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and linbilities. The Company has access to 
a sufficient variety o f sources of funding. Hav ing regards to the nature of the business wherein the 
Company is able to generate fixed cash flows over a period of time and to optimize the cost of funding. the Company. 
from time to time, funds its long -term investment from short-term sources. The short-term borrowings can be roll 
forward or, if required. can be refinanced from long term borrowings. In addi tion. processes and policies related to 
such risks are overseen by senior management. · 

<&G'J n 0 
The table below provid 
2023 and 3 I March 202 

41: 0 the contractual maturities o f significant fi :jn~ irie as at 3 1 March 
1) 1 - .. 01r1-

Q 9 ,noi-1 J 
-<. ~ 5 



(Rs. /11 '000) 

As at 3 1 March 2023 

Pa rticula rs 
Less tha n 

1-2 years 
2 years 

To tal 
o ne year a nti above 

Borrowings 11,40--1 I 1.--104 273,477 296.285 

Trade Payables 46 1 - - 461 

Other Financial Liabilities ., - " _ ).) - - ., -" _)J 

To tal 12,118 11 ,404 273,477 2 96,999 

As at 3 1 March 2022 

Particula rs 
Less than 

1-2 years 
2 )'C~ll'S 

Total 
one year and above 

Borrowings - - 192.050 192.050 

Trade Payables 374 - - 374 

Other Financ ia l Liabilities 7.452 - - 7.452 

Tota l 7,826 - 192,050 199,876 

i ii Foreign Currency Risk 

The Company's operations are largely wit hin India and hence the exposure to foreign currency risk is very minimal. 

35. Financial Ratios 
The Ratios for the years ended March 3 1.2023 and March 3 1.2022 arc as follows: 

r ~1rtic ulars Numcr.itor De nominator 
As at March 3 I. Variance 
2023 2022 (in '½,) 

a ) Current ratio1 Current Asset Current Liabilirv 0.43 0.33 32.00 

b) Debt-Equity ratio2 Total Liabilities (Debt) Shn1·c:holdcrs Equity 22.0..1 3.88 468.7'2 

c) Debt service coverage ratio EBITD/\ Principal + Interest 0.44 0.80 NA 

d) Renirn on equity ratio' Net Profit Shareholders Equity -268.63% -71.20% 277.28 

e) I nvcntory turnovl.!r ratio Net Sales A veraP,e Inventory 19.03 NA NA 

{) Trade receivables turnover ratio·' Net Credit Sales AvcraP,e Trade Receivables 1--102.93 --1.42 31,674.95 

g) Tracie payables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchase A veral!e Trade Pavables NA NA NA 

h) Net capital turnover ratio5 Turnover Working Capital -2.76 -1.9 1 44.95 

i) Net profit ratio6 Net Profit Turnover -1 75.61% -325.73% (46.09) 

i) Return on capital employed EBIT Capita l Employed -4.06% -3.36% 20.86 

Income generated Time Weighte;:d Average 
-

k) Return on investment from Investment Investment 0.00 0.00 

Note: -
EBIT DA - Earnings before Interest. Taxes. Depreciation and Amortization 
EBIT - Earnings before Interest and Taxes 
Working Capital - Current Assets less Current Liabilities 
Capital Employed - Total Assets less Current Liabilities 
Shareholders Equity - Share capital plus Other Equity 

Exnlanation: -
I. The positive impact in Current Ratio is due to increase in current asset during the year. 
2. The adverse impact on Debt Equity Ratio is due to increase in bank borrowing in current year. 
3. The adverse impact on Return on Equity Ratio is due to increase in net loss because of interest on Term Loan. 
4. The positive impact on Trade Receivable turnover Ratio is due to increase in Net Credit Sales. 
5. The adverse impact on Net Capital Turnover Ratio is clue to increase in current liabi lities of current yefil. 
6. The Positiy~act on Net Profit Ratio is due to increase in Turnover during the year. '1/'c ~ 00~1 . Q 
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36. Pending Litigations 
1. In the litigation o f Broil Solar Energy Private Limited v/s Nagpur Municipal Corporation. centered around a 

12.6 MWp Solar Proj ect's Rooftop EPC and O&M contract. a Section 11 Application for arbitrator 
appointment was dismissed on March I 0. 2023, citing prematurity due to incomplete proof of a criticnl 
notice's service. The case is set to be refi led after 60 clays. followi ng the exhaustion ofpre-arbitral procedures. 
Notably. the re-issued notice to the other party was successfully served on A pril I . 2023. 

11. The Company is currently engaged in litigation against RRECL regarding the invocation of a Bank Guarantee 
(BG) related to RRECL's request for proposal (RFP) for Rooftop Solar Photovoltaic Power Projects. The 
Company is pursuing a Writ Pet ition to contest the £3G invocation; however. due to an ongoing strike. the 
legal proceedings have been delayed. and there is no current update on the case. 

37. Segment Reporting 
T he Company is mainly engaged in the business of generation and selling or power in India. Oased on the information 
reported for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance, there arc no reportable segments in 
accordance w ith the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard I 08-'Operating Segments'. notifi ed under the 
Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

38. On March 2-t. 2021. the M inistry of Corporate A ff airs (MCA) through a noti fication, amended Schedule 111 of the 
Companies Act. 20 13 and the amendments are applicable for financial periods commencing from April I. 2021. The 
Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financial statements and complied w ith the same. 

In order to simplify numerical data and enhance the clarity or our presentations. we have rounded figures 10 the nearest 
thousands as per the requirement or Ind AS Schedule 111 Amendments. While this approach helps to make data easier 
to interpret, it can sometimes result in a total mismatch between individual figures and their srnn when rounded. 

39. Additional regulatory information 
a) Details of bcn:1mi property held 
No proceedings have been initiated on or arc pending against the Company under the Prohibition of Benami 
Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 
(45 o f 1988)) and Rules made thereunder. 

b) Borrowing secured :1gai11st current assets 
The Company has borrowing limits sanct ioned from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security or 
current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions are in 
agreement w ith the books of accounts. 

c) Wilful defaulter 
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 

d) Relationship with struck off companies 
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Compan ies Act, 2013 or Companies /\cl. 
1956. 

e) Compliance with number of layers of com panies 
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) or the Companies Act.2013 
read with Companies (Restriction o f number o f layers) Rules.201 7. 

f) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium 
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other pcrson(s) or entity(ies). includ ing foreign 
entities ( Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

a. di rectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee. security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (Funding Pal'ly) 
he understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: .~~ 

~J;::...:~◄~~ctly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner, ~~,,,oev~~-f on 
beha ti) he Funding Party (U ltimate Beneficiaries) or * /,.,RNOHl41'" ';,, 

b. p CS' e any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries <.;J ,. 



g) Undisclosed income 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments 
under !he Income Tax Act. 1961. that has 1101 been recorded in the books of account. 

h) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

i ) Valuation of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment property 
The Company has 1101 revalued its property. plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible as cls 
or both during the current or previous year. 

j) Other regulatory in formation Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registra r of Companies 
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statutory period. 

-lO. The Company has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. 
At the year-end. the company has reviewed all such contracts and confirmed that no provision is required to be created 
under any law / accounting standard towards any foreseeable losses. 

-l I. Previous year's figures are regrouped / rearranged, where necessary. to confirm to the current year's classi ficatio11 / 
disclosure. 

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements : 1-41 
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